Public Document Pack

Licensing and Regulatory Committee- 27 April 2017

WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the Meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee held in the Council Chamber - The Guildhall, Marshall's Yard, Gainsborough, DN21 2NA on 27 April 2017 commencing at 6.30 pm.

Present:	Councillor Mrs Jessie Milne (Chairman) Councillor Owen Bierley (Vice-Chairman)
	Councillor Mrs Sheila Bibb Councillor David Cotton Councillor Mrs Angela Lawrence Councillor Mrs Pat Mewis Councillor Mrs Judy Rainsforth
In Attendance: Andy Gray Kathryn Hearn Dinah Lilley	Housing and Communities Team Manager Senior Community Safety Officer Governance and Civic Officer
Apologies:	Councillor Mrs Gillian Bardsley Councillor Mrs Diana Rodgers
Membership:	There were no substitutions.

23 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no Public Participation

24 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

RESOLVED that the 26 January 2017 be confirmed as a correct record and signed.

25 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest at this point of the meeting.

26 MATTERS ARISING SCHEDULE

It was noted that the one green item on the Matters Arising Schedule was scheduled for later in the year, when the new scheme had been in operation for some time, that a comparison of costs be made with the cost of employing a dog warden.

RESOLVED that the Matters Arising Schedule be noted.

27 PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER

Following approval on 26 January 2017 by the Licensing and Regulatory Committee, a consultation was held on a proposal to make a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO). The Senior Community Safety Officer introduced the results of that consultation.

These Orders could be made on any land open to the air that the public had a right or entitlement of access to. This meant that the legislation could apply to land belonging to local authorities, as well as, for example, Church grounds and land belonging to a resident owned management company.

The proposed PSPO aimed to reduce occurrences of uncleared dog fouling in the District by requiring fouling to be picked up in all public spaces (within the definition of public in this legislation), and by requiring dog waste to be properly disposed of in a general or dog waste bin.

Public consultation was held from 13 February 2017 to 27 March 2017. This exceeded the statutory minimum consultation period of 30 days, and met the standard council consultation period of 6 weeks. A Public Notice was placed in the local media on Thursday 9 February 2017 as required by legislation, and articles on the consultation were placed in several local newspapers covering the District, on social media and on the West Lindsey website.

Statutory consultees included:

- Police and Crime Commissioner
- Local police Inspector
- Lincolnshire County Council highways
- Parish and Town Councils
- Elected members of the Council
- Church diocese

132 responses were received on the consultation from a wide cross section of the District with 92% of respondents (119 responses) agreeing that uncleared dog fouling was an issue in their locality. 99% of respondents (128 responses) supported the making of a PSPO.

84 comments were received, with the top five topics being as follows:

- 1. How will the order be enforced?
- 2. Great idea
- 3. Signage is important as part of the order
- 4. Publicity needs to be undertaken
- 5. More dog bins required in some areas

The report set out further explanation in response to the questions raised, in terms of enforcement, publicity, signage, dog bins (the publicity would highlight that general waste bins could now be used for dog waste).

Members of the Committee welcomed the report, and agreed that dog fouling amounted to

antisocial behaviour, and that education and publicity were required to highlight and correct the behaviour.

It was questioned whether the wording was appropriate on the proposed Order, at Schedule 1 para a. that the following land would not be subject to the Order – woodland and heath. Walkers used footpaths within this type of land and should not be subjected to uncleared dog waste, although it was acknowledged that it would not be possible to enforce clearing on a wider scale over open land. The officer noted that she could amend the order if Members so wished.

It was proposed and seconded that 'woodland and heath' be removed from the schedule of exemptions. On being voted upon, this was agreed.

RESOLVED that the schedule of exemptions be amended to remove 'woodland and heath'.

The Order as amended was then moved, seconded and voted upon.

RESOLVED that:

- a) the results of the public consultation be noted; and
- b) the making of the Public Space Protection Order, effective from 5 June 2017, be approved.

The meeting concluded at 6.51 pm.

Chairman

This page is intentionally left blank